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The Milam House is a three-story frame structure constructed ca. 1828 and is a
variation of Greek revival style architecture.

Exterior: Extending the length of the front facade is a two-story porch which was
probably a later addition. The porch is supported by six slender wooden columns,
each of which is actually three columns joined together to form one. The columns
lead into slender wooden arches which ornament each bay on both levels of the porch.
Each of the two floors has 6/6 windows and a central paneled door with sidelights
and transom. A small pediment containing a window ornaments the central bay of the
front facade. A scalloped molding runs along the eave of the cornice. The original
granite steps lead up to the main floor porch.

The two side facades each feature two brick chimneys, 6/6 windows, and two small
windows. On the right side there is also a small porch which has three simple wooden
columns. At the rear of the structure is a small wing which was added sometime after
1920.

Because the wood had decayed, the lower level of the front porch was shortened,
and parts of several columns were replaced by stone supports ca. 1920. Sometime
after this date, the balustrade along the upper level of the porch was removed. The
exterior, which was originally clapboard, was covered by composition shingles a few
years ago. Plans are now being made to restore the exterior to its original appearance.

Interior: The interior is basically unaltered. The first floor has the typical four
room, divided by a large central hallway, plan. The second floor contains three
bedrooms and a small sitting room, while the third floor is the attic story (and may
have been used as a schoolroom).

Wide baseboards, wainscotting, and paneled doors appear throughout the structure.
The original hardware remains on several doors. Fireplaces with the original mantels
appear in all the main rooms, but the mantel in the parlor is especially noteworthy
with its shell motifs.

In most of the main rooms the area between the chair-rail and baseboard remains
as painted originally -- to look like walnut. Wide board panelling appears in several
rooms, scroll design stair brackets ornament the main staircase, and a brick herring-
bone pattern remains on one of the hearths. An extra staircase which leads directly
from the right front room to the room above is of special interest.

The right rear room on the main floor has been converted into a kitchen but with
very little alteration to the room itself. The only major structural alteration to
the interior has been the addition of a small wing off the end of the central hallway,
containing a bathroom and a small storage area.

Surroundings: Included in the nominated acreage are several barns and the fami]y
cemetery which is located directly across the road from the house. A cedar-lined
driveway leads to the cemetery.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Milam House was constructed ca. 1828 by Dr. John Nickels, a prominent
and wealthy figure in the Lisbon Community (about 8 miles outside of Laurens,
South Carolina). His wealth is documented by an 1850 inventory and appraisal
of his estate which included 2,425 acres of land and 78 slaves. The house
remained in the possession of Dr. Nickels' descendants until ca. 1920 when it
was sold to Mr. and Mrs. Charles L. Milam. ‘

Prominent figures in the religious, political, and social history of Laurens
County have inhabited this structure.

Religion: The family of Dr, Nickels was instrumental in the founding of Lisbon
Presbyterian Church. His wife, Jane Simpson Nickels, made an effort to get a
Presbyterian church in. the neighborhood in 1853 but failed. His daughters,

Isabella Nickels Wright and Catherine Nickels Holmes, succeeded with the organiza-
tion of Lisbon Presbyterian Church in 1871. Services were held at the Milam House
until the church was completed sometime in the 1880s. Local tradition maintains that
the church was constructed on land donated by the Nickels family. Although no deed
exists, the church is adjacent to the house, and the Nickels land surrounded it.

Catherine Nancy Nickels, Dr. Nickels' daughter, married the minister and
educator, Reyerend Zelotes Lee Holmes. At one point, Reverend Holmes served as
pastor of Lisbon Presbyterian Church and is also noteworthy as the builder of
the Octagon House (National Register property) in Laurens.

Politics: Mr. Charles L. Milam purchased the property ca. 1920, and it has
remained in his family since that time. Mr. Milam represented Laurens County
in the South Carolina House of Representatives from 1937 until 1956.

Architecture: The Milam House exemplifies the type of structure built by wealthy
farmers in the upcountry of South Carolina during the early 19th Century.

Although its exterior shows characteristics of Greek revival architecture, <
the Milam House 1s especially noteworthy for its interior, which is basically
unaltered. The original moldings, paneled doors, and mantels remain in good
condition as does the wide-board flooring and much of the original hardware.

Most of the painted simulated walnut wainscotting remains on the first floor,
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and the original paint still covers the walls of the upstairs hallway.
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